BATHIYA

& ASSOCIATES LLP CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chembond Water Technologies Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) in the
Mmanner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March 2022, and profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact to those charged with governance. We have nothing to
report in this regard,

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are fiee from materjal misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.




* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the Company to
express an opinion on the financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of these financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31* March, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors® Report in accordance with Rule
I'l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

iv,

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer note no. 47 to the financial statements;

. the Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made there
under.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in note no. 44(D), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in note no. 44(E), no funds have been received by the Company from any




person(s) or entity(entities), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
Understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us believe that
management representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid and / or provided remuneration to its directors during the year ended 31 March, 2022 in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W 100063

Jatin A, Thakkar
Partner »
Membership No.: 134767 —
Place : Mumbai

Date : April 30, 2022

UDIN : 22134767AKBUTL1365




Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date for the year ended 3 1% March, 2022)

Report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of the
Company.

(®)
(a) [A] The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

[B] The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment,
under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢c) The Company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed.

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs. 500.00 lakhs sanctioned by a bank
based on the security of current assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital
limits have been filed by the Company with such bank and such statements are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company for the respective periods except for the discrepancies as reported
in note no. 43 of the financial statements.

(iii)
(a) The Company has not provided a loan or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not provided or given any guarantee, security or advances in the nature of loans
during the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) The Company has not provided any loans and advances in the nature of loans, Accordingly,
reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.




(iv)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in respect of investments. The Company has
not given loans, given guarantees and provided securities covered by provisions of Section 185 and
186 of the Act.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) On the basis of explanation and representation given by the management and on our broad review of
the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (cost records and audit)
Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act, we are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

(vii)

(a) As per information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, profession tax, Goods and Service Tax, custom
duty, cess and other statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been delays in deposit in a few cases
which are not serious. Further, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of above-
mentioned statutory dues which were in arrears, as at 315 March, 2022 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, excise duty and cess, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except in the case of the following disputes which are

pending;:

Name of Nature of the Amount Period to which the | Forum where dispute

statute Dues (Rs. In amount relates is pending
lakhs)
Income Tax Income Tax 4.63 FY 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Goods and Goods and 0.46 FY 2021-22 State Tax Officer, GST
Service Tax, | Service Tax Department
2017

TOTAL 5.09

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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(x)

(xi)

(c) On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of term loan during the year.
Therefore, the clause 3(ix)(c) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not utilized the funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised money by way of initial public offer during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by
our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered

into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under
section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an internal audit

system as per Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of

section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. B
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

(xvii)

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

(xx)

ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities , our
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under subsection (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause
under this report,

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W100063

i i 1
Jatin A. Thakkar

Partner +
Membership No.: 134767 S
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Date : April 30, 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date for the year ended 3 1 March, 2022)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chembond Water Technologies
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31* March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance’ regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;




(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and
directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101046W / W 100063
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Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2022
UDIN : 22134767AKBUTL1365
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Chembond Water Technologies Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Notes| As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 |
| ASSETS (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 391.37 390.65
(b) Other Intangible Assels 3 5.58 8.69
(e) Financial Assets
i)lnvestments 4 1,273.87 1,287.27
ii)Other financial assels & 537.28 333.21
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 38.95 36.25
(e) Income tax asset (net) 7 209.10 169.59
(f) Other non-current assets 8 8.16 10.73
Total Non - Current Assets 2,464.31 2,226.29
2 Current Assels
(a) Inventories 9 1,018.83 774.06
(b) Financial Assels
i)investments 10 - 0.29
iiyTrade receivables 11 4,306.74 4,217.98
iiiyCash and cash equivalents 12 191.00 473.44
iv)Other bank balances 13 807.38 1,136.36
v)Loans 14 1.01 5.26
vi)Other financial assels 15 22.29 21.90
(c) Other current assets 16 69.19 249,23
Total Current Assets 6,416.43 6,878.52
Total Assets 8,880.74 9,104.80
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Share capital 17 50.00 50.00
(b) Other equity 18 6,868.21 6,265.82
Total Equity 6,918.21 6,316.82
2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i)Borrowings 19 31.18 33:59
(b) Provisions 20 36.55 60.02
Total Non - Current Liabilities 67.75 93.61
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i)Trade payables
Trade payables -MSMED 21 294.96 129.20
Trade payables -Others 21 1,050.99 1,970.82
iii)Other financial liabilities 22 389.06 364.91
(b) Other current liabilities 23 111.33 22948
(c) Provisions 24 48.44 0.97
Total Current Liabilities 1,894.79 2,695.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,880.74 9,104.80
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-48

As per our attached report of even date

For Bathiya & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Jatin A. Thakkar
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Partner
Membership No. : 134767
Place : Mumbai.

Date: 30th April, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chembond Water Technologies Limited
CIN: U24110MH1984PLC 143564

Nirmal V. Shah
Director
DIN : 00083853

Place : Mumbai.
Date: 30th April, 2022

1P

Sameer V. Shah

Director
DIN: 00105721

Place : Mumbai.
Date: 30th April, 2022

Vinod J. Despande

Director
DIN: 07529370

Place : Mumbai.
Date: 30th April, 2022



Chembond Water Technologies Ltd.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

| Revenue From Operations
Il Other Income
Il Total Revenue (I1+1)

IV Expenses .
Cost of Materials Consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benefils Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses
vV Profit before Exceptional items and Tax
V1 Exceptional Items

VIl Profit before Tax

VIl Tax Expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Short/Excess provision of IT for earlier year
Total Tax Expense

IX Profit for the Year

X Other Comprehenshive Income
1 i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
2 i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
i) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income (1+2)

Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X)

Xl Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each
Basic (in Rs.)
Diluted (in Rs.)

Significant Accounting Policies and Noles on Financial Statements

—

Notes| Asat 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
25 16,662.37 13,765.16
26 194.21 117.54
16,856.58 13,882.69
27 8,659.53 6,418.67
28 943.76 467.25
29 (124.74) (76.12)
30 2,863.58 2,428.29
3 35.96 41.02
32 85.97 90.91
33 3,259.48 2,998.18
15,723.563 12,368.21
1,133.06 1,614.48
1,133.05 1,514.48
296.72 433.68
(2.69) (40.13)
4.70 (37.48)
208.72 3566.07
834.33 1,168.41
(15.96) 2.47
4.02 (0.62)
(11.94) 1.85
822.39 1,160.26
45
166.87 23168
166.87 231.68
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Chembond Water Technologies Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

( All amount are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Year ended 31st March, 2022

Year ended 31st March, 2021

A. [Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortization

Loss on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipement
Finance Cost

Less :
Profit on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipement
Interest on bank deposits and loans at amortised cost

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for

Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories

Trade and Other Payables

Cash generated from operating activities
Income taxes paid (Net of Refund)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)
B. |Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Payment to acquire Properly, plant & equipments
Proceeeds from Sale of Property, plant & equipmenls
Purchase of Investment

Sale of Investment

Loans given to Employees

Interest on bank deposits and loans at amortised cost

Net cash used in investing activities (B)
C. [Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Proceeds/(Repayment) of long Term Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
Dividend paid

Finance Cost

Net cash used in financing activities (C )

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as ofi Opening
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Closing

1133.05 1514.48
85.97 90.91
0.17 2,76
35.96 41.02

122.09 134.69
0.21 0.00
7123 96.72

-71.44 -96.72

1183.70 1552.45
-96.56 -118.50
-244.78 -275.47
-824.05 1033.25
0.00

-1165.39 639.27

18.31 2191.73

-376.91 -412.84

-358.60 1778.89

-83.97 -69.42

0.33 1.00

-491.60 -894.12

505.29 364.89

4.26 -1.62

71.23 96.72

5.53 -502.54

-2.39 -4.79

0.00 -400.00

-220.00 0.00

-35.96 -41.02

-258.35 -445.81

-611.42 830.54

1609.80 779.26

998.39 1609.80
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Chembond Water Technologies Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2022

NOTE 1 - COMPANY OVERVIEW
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd. is a subsidiary of Chembond Chemicals Ltd. .
Chembond is an established manufacturer of Specialty chemicals in India since 1975. We have been operaling in the value added Water Treatment

Solulions field since 1984 and serve diverse industries like Steel, Power, Ferlilizers, Refineries, Petrochemicals, Mining, Sugar, paper and pulp,
textile and Municipal corporation.

Our water management involves the use of the state-of-the-art chemical technology supported by onsite services to ensure the continuous and
consistent performance moniloring of the treatment program.

The Company has been incorporated on December 12, 1984,

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company (also called standalone financial statements). The Company has
prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) logether with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March
31, 2021.

For all the periods up to the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
previous GAAP, which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).

A Basis of Preparation, measurement and Transition to Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values

Effective April 1, 2017 the Company has adopted all the Ind AS slandards and the adoption as carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2016 as the transilion date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepled in India as prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Comapnies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements except where a newly-issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an exisling accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is the company's funclional currency

B Current and Non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balace sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An assel is reated as current when it is:
(i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used lo settle a liability for atleast lwelve months after the reporting period

' All other assels are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
(i) It is expected lo be settled in normal operating cycle.
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of Irading
(iii) It is due to be seltled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all ither liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cuuent assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company
has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

C Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Company’s financial statemenls requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a malerial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in fulure periods.
Crilical accounting estimates and assumptions
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
a. Estimation of taxes
b. Determination of the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and determining intangible assets having an indefinite useful life.
c.Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized
d. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit abligations, key acluarial assumptions
e. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

f. Fair value of financial instruments

D Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE') is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the future qgeﬁéﬁﬁﬂé-m@ils
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably, 2 BRSSO,
‘pip)‘pdre‘ﬁsfg (kS

PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price (including import duties and nnn—refunga
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but excluding any trade discount and rebates), and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assel to its working condition and localion for its
intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent
expenditure relating lo PPE is capitalizes only when it is probable that future economic benefits assaciated with these will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amonut is derecognised and the cost of the new
item of PPE is recognised. Further, in case the replaced part was nol deprecialed separately, the cost of the replacemnet is used as an indication o
determinethe cost of the replaced parl at the time it was acquired. All other repair and maintenance cost are recognised in Statement of profit and
loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an assel after its use is included in the cost of the respeclive
assel if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecongnised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefils are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss when the PPE is derecognised.

The Company identifies and determines cost of gach component/part of the asset separalely, if the component/part has a cost which is significant to
the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are slated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Profit or Loss on disposal of

intangible assets is recognised in the Stalement of Profil and Loss.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on PPE has been provided based on useful life of the assels in accordance with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, under
Written Down Value method. Depreciation on assets acquired / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date
of addilion / disposal. Residual value for all assets (including intangible assets) are considered al 5% of cost of acquisition of an assel. Depreciation
J Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Amortisation
on Intangible asset consisling of computer softwares has been provided based on their useful life which is estimated as 3 years, under the Written

Down Value method (WDV).
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed on a regular basis and changes in estimates, when relevanl, are

accounted for on a prospective basis

Capital Work-in-proqress

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of assets that are yel not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet dale. Advances given
towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as Capital Advances under Other Non-Current Assels

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of the cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable
value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks are valued at net realizable value.

Cost of raw materials, packing malerials and stores spares and consumables Stocks is determined so as lo exclude from the cost, taxes and duties
which are subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cosl of malerials,an appropriate allocation of overheads and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of
returns, trade discount or rebates and applicable taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government and which are levied on such sales.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Company.

i. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer as per terms of Contract,
usually on delivery of goods.

ii. Revenue from services is recognised pro-rala as and when services are rendered over a specified period of time. The company collects servive
tax / goods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore it is not an economic benefit flowing to the company. Hence it is excluded
from the revenue.

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method on time praportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right Lo receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend. ;

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee ().

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction .Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at functional currency closing rate of exchange
at the reporting dale. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange lransactions sellled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Non-manelory assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated

Impairment of Assets

(i) Financial assets (other than at fair value)
The Company assesses at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assels andfor all
{rade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i) Non-financial assets
Tangible and intangible assets




Property, planl and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication thal their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assel does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assels. in such cases, the recoverable amont is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the assels belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or CGU) is eslimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the Slatement of profit and loss.

Retirement Benefits :

(a) Short term Employee Benefits

All employee benefils payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and they are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term
employee benefils expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.
Post Employment Benefits

1. Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered pension fund scheme for all applicable employees
and superannuation scheme for eligible employees.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees
render services lo the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before the reporting
date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficil payable is recognized as a liability after deducling the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an assel lo the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

1. Defined Benefit plans:

Provident Fund scheme

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in accordance with the statutory provisions
Graluily scheme

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company contribules lo a separate entity (a fund) administered by LIC,
towards meeling the Gratuily obligation.

Pension Scheme:

The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan for certain specified employees and is payable upon the employee salisfying certain
conditions, as approved by the Board of Directors.

Recognition and measurement of Defined Benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valualions being carried oul al each
reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit assel (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this calculation)
is recagnized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

the Sstatement of Pprofit and Lloss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability

/ (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on Ihe plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not reclassified lo the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the Balance Sheet as per actuarial valuation by the independent
actuary; however, the entire liability towards gratuity is considered as current as the Company will contribute this amount to the gratuity fund within
the next lwelve months.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
The Company does not allow any accumulation of leavebalance or encashmenl thereof.

Provision For Current & Deferred Tax
Income tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except lo the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCI, in which case, the tax is also recognised in directly in equity or OCI respectively.

Current Tax

Current fax is the amount expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the year and any adjusiment to the tax payable or
recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured using lax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respecl to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred Income Tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and

taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arisies from
the initial recognition of an assets or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the exent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assels is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected lo be received or sellled.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when they relate lo income taxes levied by the sameWa‘Wy and the relevant entity intends lo
seltles its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. //’ 55‘50 C(f};}\
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Deferred tax assels include Minimum Allernative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give fulure economic
benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in lhe Balance
sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the assel will be realised.

The Company recognises interest levied and penalties related to income tax assessments in finance cosls.

Earnings Per Share :
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS”) data for ils equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss

altributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profil or loss attributable to equily shareholders and the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all stock options granted to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospeclively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embadying economic benefits will be required o settle the aobligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. If
the effect of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-lax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of lime is recognised as a finance cosl.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

(ii) Present obligalions arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount of the abligation cannot be made

Contingent Assels are not recognised in the financial staterments.

Dividend distribution to equily shareholders

Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a loability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders. Interim
dividends that are declared by the Board of Directors without the need for equity shareholders' approvals are recognised as a liability and deducted
from shareholders' equity in the year in which dividends are declared by the Board of directors.

Lease Accounting

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operaling leases.

Company as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised al the commencement of the lease at the inceplion date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
halance of the liabilily. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs, unless they are directly altributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensale for the lessor's expecled inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Conlingent rentals arising under operating leases are also recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefils accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotialing and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earmed.

Amounts due from lessess under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease Income
is allocated to accounting periods so as lo reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabiliies for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Financial Instruments

Finacial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party lo the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and liablities are inilially measured at fair value. Transacion costa that are directly attributable lo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities ( other than financial assets and finacial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of finanvial assets or financial liability.

|. Cash and cash equivalents /
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known am(qﬁt
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of/ ug
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and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

II. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequentlymeasure at amortised cost if these financial assets are held wilhin a business whose objective is to hold these
assets (o collect contractual cash flows and the contractual lerms of the financial assels give rise on specified dales to cash flows Lhat are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

IIl. Financial assels al fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assels are held within a business whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contraclual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
oulstanding and selling financial assets.

The company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity
investments not held for trading.

V. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The Lransaction costs directly altributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

V. Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured al amorlised cost using the effective interest method.

V1. Equily instruments
An equity instruments is a conltract that evidences residual interest in the assels of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by lhe company are recognised at the proceeds received nel off direct issue cosl.




3 Property, plant and equipment, Intangibles and Capital work in progress as at 31st March, 2022

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION INCLUDING AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

Description As at 1.04.2021 Additions Deductions As at 31.03.2022 | Asat 1.04.2021 Additions | Deductions |As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2021
Property, plant and equipment
Tangible Assets
Equipment & Machinery 691.84 74.00 - 765.84 315.75 73.53 - 389.28 376.56 376.08
Computers 49.45 7.87 12.11 45.32 35.48 7.37 11.85 31.00 14.32 13.97
Furniture & Fixtures 0.68 - - 0.68 0.38 0.03 - 0.40 0.28 0.30
Moator Cars - + - - - = < - * -
Electric Fittings & Installations 0.34 - - 0.34 0.05 2.55 2.48 0.13 0.21 0.29
Sub- total 742.31 81.97 12.11 812.18 351.66 83.47 14.33 420.81 391.37 390.65
Intangible Assets -
Computer Software 19.93 2.00 0.66 21.27 11.34 4.97 0.63 15.63 5.58 8.59
Sub-total 19.93 2.00 0.66 21.27 11.34 4.97 0.63 | - 15.69 5.58 8.59
Total 762.24 83.97 12107, 833.44 363.00 88.45 14.96 436.49 396.95 399.24
Previous Year 698.46 69.42 5.64 762.24 273.98 50.91 1.89 363.00 399.24 424.49
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Financial Assets (Non-Current)

Investments

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries amortised at cost
Unquoted

82,78,056 (82,78,056) Equity Shares of Chembond Clean Waler

Technologies Ltd of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

(Conslituling 100% (47.99%) of the said Company's paid up capilal)

2,00,000 (2,00,000) Equity Shares of Chembond Chemicals (Malaysia) SDN. BHD
of RM.1.86/- each fully paid up

(Constituting 100 % (100%) of the said Company's paid up capital)

NIL (2647) Equily Shares of Genesis Artificial Intelligence Pvt Ltd of
Rs 10/- each fully paid up. e

40,000 (Nil) Equily Shares of Chembond Water Technologies (THAILAND) Co.Ltd
(Constiluling 100 % (Nil) of the said Company's paid up capital)

Other Financial Assets

(Unsecured & considered good)

Fixed Deposit of Maturily of More than 12 Months - Under Lien
Other Deposits

Deferred Tax Asset (net)

Deferred tax Liability
Depreciation

Deferred lax Asset
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Net Deferred Tax Asset

Income tax asset (net)

Income Tax (Nel of Provision)

Other non-current assets

VAT Refund Receivable

Inventories

(At lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Raw Material

Packing Material

Finished Goods

Slock-in-Trade

Investments (Current)

MIL (713.570) Units Kolak Bond Short Term Fund

Aggregate amount of Quoled Investments and Market Value therof
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured Considered Good

Unsecured Considered doubtful

Less : Provision for Doubfful Debts

Refer note no 40 for Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks

In Current Accounts
Cash on hand

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs)

As at 31/03/2021
(Rs. In lakhs)

1,119.59 1,119.59
62.68 62.68
0.00 105.00
91.60 0
1,273.87 1,287.27
534.28 330.21
3.00 3.00
537.28 333.21
(7.49) (8.54)
(7.49) (8.54)
46.43 44.79
46.43 44.79
36.95 36.26
209.10 159,59
200.10 159.59
8.16 10.73
8.16 10.73
643.44 523.94
22,31 21.78
311.63 139.70
41.44 88.64
1,018.83 774.06
B 0.29
A 0.29
0.29
4,308.74 4,217.98
181.19 174.78
(181.19) (174.78)
4,306.74 4,217.98
190.99 473.43
0.01 0.01
191.00 473.44

Total”
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OTHER BANK BALANCES
Deposit meney (Including deposits with orginal maturity of more than 3 months) - Under Lien

Total

Loans
(Unsecured & considered good)
Loan and advance to Employees

Total

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{(Unsecured & considered good)
Security Deposils

Total
Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses
Advances for supply of goods and services
Balances wilth government authorilies
Total

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equily Shares of Rs.10/-(Rs.10/-) each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
500000 (500000) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/-(Rs.10/-) each fully paid up
Total
Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and
at the end of the reporting year:
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Deductions during the year
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares

Name of the Shareholder
Chembond Chemicals Limited (Helding Company) and its nominges
% held
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :
Shares held by promoters
As at 31st March 2022

As at 31/03/2022

As at' 31/03/2021

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
807.38 1.136.36
807.38 1,136.36

1.01 5.26
1.01 5.26
22.29 21.90
22.29 21.90
19.46 15.46
33.95 193.65
15.78 4012
69.19 249.23
100.00 100.00
50.00 50.00
50,00 50.00
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000

As at 31/03/2022
No of Shares

As at 31/03/2021
No of Shares

5,00,000
100.00%

Year

Promoter's Name No. of Shares % of total shares |% Change during the
Chembond Chemical Limited 500000 100% MNIL
Total 500000 100% NIL

As at 31st March, 2021

Year

Promoter's Name No. of Shares  |% of total shares % Change during the
Chembond Chemical Limited 500000 100% NIL
Total 500000 100% NIL

OTHER EQUITY

General Reserve
As per last year
Add:Transfer from Profit & Loss Alc.

Retained Earnings
As per last year
Add: Profit for the Year

Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve
Previous Year Dividend

Tax on previous Year Dividend

Sub total - to be mentioned

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
As per last year

Movement During the Year

5,00,000
100.00%

As at 31/03/2022

As at 31/03/2021

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
971.22 901 .22
0.00 70.00
971.22 971.22
5,307.77 4,219.37
834.33 1,158.41
6,142.11 5,377.77
(70.00)
(198.00) 0.00
(22.00) 0.007
(220.00) (70.00
5,922 11 5,307.77
(13.18) (15.02)
(11.94) 1.85
(25.12) (13.18
var
6,868.21 6,265.82
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BORROWINGS

Secured
Cash credit facilities from banks

Details for Cash credit facilities from banks:

Terms of loan

The Company has sanctioned credit facilities from Bank of India of Rs. 1900.00 lakhs (i.e cash credit facility
Rs.400.00 lakhs and Bank Guarantee - Rs.1500.00 lakhs)

The Company has not utilised cash credit facilities at the year end.

The credit facility taken from Bank Of India carries interest rate of Bank Of India, currenly 7.70% p.a. (31
March 2021: 9.40% p.a),(interest payable on monthly rests).

The credit facility is secured by : Hypothecation of stocks and baokdebits related lo lreatment chemical
systems

Unsecured
Dealer Deposits

Total

Provisions- Non Current
Provision for Gratuily

Total
TRADE PAYABLES
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
QOthers

Total
For Related party transaction Refer Note No. 39
The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act) as at the year end. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is
as under:
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
on the above amount
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the
appointed day, during the year
Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (other
than section 16)
Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
(Section 16)
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for
payments already made
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to
suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
has been determined lo the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
This has been relied upon by the Auditors,
Refer Note no 41 for Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
OTHER CURRENT Financial LIABILITIES
Creditors for Expense
Provision for Employee Benefits Payable

Total
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance Received From Customers
Statutory Dues
Other payable

Total

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Gratuity

As at 31/03/2022

As at 31/03/2021

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
3119 33.59
3119 33.59
36.55 60.02
36.55 60.02
294.96 129.20
1,050.99 1,870.82
1,345.96 2.100.02
2021-2022 2020-2021
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
294,96 129.20
0.08 0.29
904.00 2,023.16
0.08 0.29
0.08 0.29
109.78 122.26
279.28 24265
389.06 364.91
9.39 124.82
85.98 91.85
16.86 12.81
111.33 229.48
48.44 0.97
48.44 0.97

Charts

ftants | —
: o
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Goods
Net Sales

Sales of Services
Technical Service Income

Other Operating revenue

Other Operating revenue

OTHER INCOME

Profit from Sale of Mutual Funds

Interest from Bank deposits at amoriised cost
Interest from Loans at amortised cost

Bad Debts Recovered

Miscellaneous Income

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Raw Malerials Consumed
Packing Material

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Break-up of Purchase of stock-in-trade

Imported
Indigenous

CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS, AND
TRADED GOODS

Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At Close)
Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At commencement)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Director Remuneration

Salaries & Wages

Gratuity

Contribution to Provident & other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

FINANCE COST
Interest Expense
- Banks

- MSMED
Bank Guarantee fees & charges

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at 31/03/2022

As at 31/03/2021

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
14,472.66 11.928.87
14,472.66 11,928.87

2,09473 1,745.06
94.98 91.22
16,662.37 13,765.15
31.65 1.28
71.23 96.72
0.48 0.28
41.49 0.00
49.36 19.26
194.21 117.54
7.982.54 5,893.88
676,99 524.79
8,659.53 6,418.67
943.76 467.25
9,603.29 6,885.92
1,566.57 820.36
8,036.71 6,065.56
9,603,29 6,885.92
353.07 228.33
228.33 152.22
(124.74) (76.12)
110,12 96,52
2,468.44 2,096.88
47.13 34.38
177.20 146.94
60.68 53.57
2,863.58 2,428.29
3.19 15.99
0.08 0.29
32.68 2474
35.96 41.02
B85.97 90.91
85.97 90.91




As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021
OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Freight Inwards <) 16.70
Labour Charges 633.38 508.88
665.09 525,58
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Director's Sitting Fees 0.90 0.64
Rates & Taxes 13.58 10,13
Electricily charges 1.60 210
Printing and stationary 13.95 9.26
Telephone & Postage Expenses 24.64 20.89
Insurance 20.07 19.42
Computer Expense 38.04 25.06
Auditors Remuneration 5.97 4.92
Legal, Professional & consultancy fees 47 .45 62.83
Repairs & Maintenance Others 2414 23.40
Miscellaneous expenses 12.14 8.33
CSR Expenditure { Refer Note 38) 26,30 22.40
Business Support Services 238.08 206.35
Lab Testing Expenses 11.52 3.81
Technical Service Expense 200.61 102.66
Stores Consumed 349.88 314.23
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 27147 16.29
Provision for Doubtful Debis 79.96 138.90
Bad Debts Written OFff E 220.51
(Bad Debts Rs.73,55 lakhs adjusted against provision for doubtful
debts in FY 21-22)
1,135.99 1,21212
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Carriage outwards 646.57 549.54
Rent 124.80 112.09
Commission on sales 140.44 140.57
Travelling Expenses 268.21 234.21
Sales Promotion Expenses 278.39 224.07
1,458.40 1,260.48
3,259.48 2,998.18
Auditor's Remuneration consists of:
2021-2022 2020-2021
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Statutory Audit Fees 3.87 352
Tax Audit Fees 0.56 0.51
Taxation and Other Matters 1.54 0.89
5.97 4,92
Lease
The Company normally acquires offices, warehouses and
vehicles under non-cancellable operational leases. Minimum
lease payments outstanding at year end in respect of these asets
are as under:
Total Minimum Total Minimum
Lease Payment Lease Payment
Qutstanding as on Qutstanding as on
31103/2022 31/03/2021
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
Due within one year 9.74 13.66
Due later than one year and not later than five years - -
Due later than five years - -
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 124.80 112.09
EARNINGS PER SHARE
2021-2022 2020-2021
Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs) 834.33 1,158.41
Total number of Equity Shares (Face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up) 500,000 500,000
Weighted No. of Equity Shares 500,000 500,000
Basic Earnings per Share (in Rupees) 166.87 231.68
Diluted MNo. of Equity Shares 500,000 500,000
Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rupees) 166.87 231.68

ﬁ,
AT
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(a)

(h)

Tax Recenciliation
The income lax expense consists of the followings:

[Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Current Income Tax 301.41 396 20

| Deferred Tax Expense -2.69 (40.13)

Tax expense for the year 298.72 366.07 |
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax Rate

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Profil before income lax expense 1,133.05 1,514.48

Indian statutory income tax rate 0.26 0.26
Expected Income Tax expenses 290.36 388.10
Part A

Tax effecl of amounls which are nal deduclible {allowable) in calculaling taxable

Income exempl from income laxes - -

Additional allowances/deduction 6.36 49.04

| Transilion gain - -

Others (3.46)

| Shorl/Excess Provision for earlier years 4.70 (37.48) |

Current Tax (A) 301.41 396.20
Part B

|Deferred Tax Effecl al the rale of:

Opening Deferred Tax

| Deprecialion (1.05) (4.49)|
Provision for Doubtful Debts (1.64) {35.59)
Investments at Fair Value (0.00) (0.04)

(2.69) (40.13)]

Less

| Gratuily - -
MAT Credit - -

_ Other Deferred lax Assel - =

|_Provision for Doubtful Debls - -

Deferred Tax (B) (2.69) (40.13)

| Tax Expense (A+B) 298.72 356.07

36 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows (he carrying amounts and fair values of financial asset

s and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It

does nol include fair value information for financial assels and financial liabililies not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable

approximalion of fair value.

As at 31 March 2022
Carrying amount Fair value

Fair value | Fairvalue | Amotised Total Level 1 Level 3 Total

through through Cost

profit and other

loss comprehensi
ve income

Financial assets
Cash and cash 998.39 998.39 -
equivalents (Including
other bank balances) J
Investments
- Mutual Funds - - - -
Trade and olher receivables 4,306.74 4,306.74 -
Loans 1.01 1.01
Other financial assels 559,67 559.57 =
TOTAL - - 5,866.70 5,865.70 - - -
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings 31.19 31.19 -
(Including current
maturity of Long term
borrowings)
Shart term borrowings = -
Trade and olher payables 1,345.96 1,345.96 -
Olher financial liabilities 389.06 389.06 -
[TOTAL - 2 1,766.21 1,766.21 | = = =)




As at 31 March 2021 _ I

[ Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value | Fairvalue | Amolised Total Level 1 Level 3 Total
through through Cost
profit and other
loss comprehensi
ve income

Financial assels
Cash and cash 1,609.80 1,609.80 -
equivalenis (Including
olher bank balances)

Investments

- Mutual Funds 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
- Equily Shares (Unquoted) 1,287.27 1,287.27 -
Trade and other receivables 4,217.98 4,217.98 =
Loans 5.26 526 -
Other financial assels 355.11 355.11 -
ITOTAL 0.29 - 7,475.42 7,475.71 0.29 - 0.29
Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 33.59 33.69 -

(Including current
malurily of Long term

borrowings)

Short term borrowings - =
Trade and other payables 2,067.27 2,067.27

Other financial liabilities 364.91 364.91 -
[TOTAL B = 2,465.76 2,465.76 | 5 = ) o

Level 1 inpuls are quoled prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assels or liabilities that the enlily can access al (he measurement date.

Level 2 inpuls are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, thal are observable far the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabilily.

€. Financial risk management
The Company's activilies expose it to Credit risk, liquidily risk and market risk.

i. Risk management framework

Risk Management is an inlegral part of the Company's plans and operations. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for lhe
eslablishment and oversight of the Company risk management framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company
risk management policies. B

The audit commiliee oversees how management monilors compliance with the Company’s risk managemenl policies and procedures, and reviews lhe
adequacy of the risk management framewaork in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit commillee is assisted in ils oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes hoth regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management conlrols and pracedures, the resulls of which are reported to the audil
commitlee.

ii. Credit risk
Credil risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a cuslomer or counterparly lo a financial instrument fails to meel its conlractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securilies, cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bonds etc

The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credil exposure.

Trade and other
receivables

Credit risk is ihe risk of possible default by the counler parly resulling in a financial loss.

The Company manages credit risk lhrough various internal policies and procedures selforth for effeclive control over credit exposure. These are managed
by way of selting various credit approvals evaluation of financial condition before supply terms, setting credit limils, industry trends,ageing analysis and
continuously monitoring the creditwarihiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current econemic environment, management believes Ihat sufficient provision is made based on
expected credit loss model for credit risk wherever credit is extended to customers.

Cash and cash

equivalents

Cradil risk from balances with barks is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with lhe Company's policy. Investment of surplus
funds are made in mainly in mutual funds wilh good returns and with high credit ralings assigned by International and domestic credil ratings agencies,

Other than Irade and other receivables, the Company has no olher financial assels lhal are pasl due but nol impaired.

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able lo meel its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, hal il will always have sufficient liquidily lo meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses o risk to the Company's repulation.




iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may resull from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rales ). Market risk is allribulable to all market risk-sensilive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables
and payables and all short term and long-lerm debl. The Company Is exposed lo markel risk primarily related to fareign exchange rale risk, inlerest rate risk
and the market value of ils investmenls. Thus, the Company's expostre to market risk is a funclion of Investing and borrowing aclivilies and revenue
generating and operaling activiies in foreign currencies.

a) Currency risk

The Compnay is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismalch between the currencies in which sales, purchase, and olher expenses are
denominaled and the funclional currency of the Company. The funclional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (INR). The currencies in which these
Iransactions are primarily denominated are EURO and USD.

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rale risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest rales.

Investment commillee manages and constantly reviews the interest rale movements in the markel. This risk is mitigated by the Company by investing the
funds in varioustenors depending on the liquidity needs of the Company. The Company's exposures to interest rate risk is nal significant.

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
(A) Defined contribution plan
Conlributions are made lo Employee Provident Fund (RPF), Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which covers all regular
employees. Both the employees and the Company make predetermined contribulions Lo the Provident Fund and ESIC. The contributions are normally
based on a certain perceniage of lhe employee's salary. Amount recognised as expense in respecl of these defined conlribution plans, aggregale lo Rs
159.11 Lakh (Previous year Rs 140.05 Lakh)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contribulion to Providenl Fund 169,02 131.60
Coniribution to Superannualion Fund 6.07 5.59
Conltribution to ESIC 17.82 15613
Conlribulion le Labour Welfare Fund 0.36 021
183.27 162.54 |

(B) Defined Benefit Plan
The Company's obligalion towards lhe Gratuily Fund is a Defined Benefit Plan. Based on the acluarial valuation oblained in this respecl, details of Acturial

Valualion are as follows:

As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2022 2021

(Funded plan) |(Funded plan}

Tbhange in Del!hed Benefit Obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation 348.17 320.81
Amounl recognised in profil and loss Transfer oul obligation (5)

Current service cost 43.03 31.38
Interest cost 23.40 21.65

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising fram:
Retumn on Plan Assels

Financial assumptions 19.86 (1.98)
Other

Benefils paid (10.70) (23.72)
Closing defined benefit obligation 41917 348.17

{ii) Change in Fair Value of Assets

Opening fair value of plan assels 28717 276.47
Amount recognised in profit and loss Transfer oul obligation (5)

Interest income 19.29 18.66

Amount recagnised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Relurn on Plan Assets, Excluding Inlerest Income 391 0.50

Equitable Fund Transfer in =

Contributions by employer 39.09 16.25
Benefits paid [t (10.70) (23.72)
Closing fair value of plan assets 33417 287.17 |
Actual return on Plan Assets 23.20 19.17

(iii) Plan assets comprise the following

Ungouted Unqouted
Insurance fund (100%) 334.17 28717

(iv) Principal actuarial assumptions used % %
Discount rate 6.80 6.73
Withdrawal Rale 1.00 1.00

Fulure Salary Increase 5.00 5.00
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As at 31st As at 31st
(v) _Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet March, 2022 ~ March, 2021 |
Presenl value of obligations as al year end 41917 34817
Fair value of plan assels as at year end (334.17)] 287.17)|
Met (assel) / liability recognised as al year end 84.99 60.99
Recognised under :
Short term provisions 48.44 0.97
Long term provisions L. 36.55 43.64
04.99 44.61
(vi) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2022 |March, 2021
Change in
DBO DBO (%
Discount Rate Varied by 1.0%
+1% 379.35 | -9.50%
1% 465.86)  11.10% )
Salary Growth rate varied by 1.0%
1% 466.15]  11.20%)
L 1% 378.46 | -9.70%|
(vii) _Expected future cash flows
The expected maturity analysis is as follows : |For year ended |For year ended
31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Expecled benefits for year 1 27.65 13.73
Expecled benefits for year 2 19.11 2217
Expecled benefits for year 3 23.64 33.66
Expecled benefils for year 4 719 42.60
Expected benefils for year 5 33.71 59.73
Expecled benefils for year 6 and above 25216 1239.24]
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's capilal management objeclives are:
(i) Debt equily ratio
As at As at

March 31, 2022 |

Less : cash and cash equivalents
Net debt

Total equity

Net debl lo tolal equity ratio

Debl {includes non-current, current barrowings and current maturities of long term debt)

119!
191.00
0.00
6918.21

0.00%

March 31, 2021

33.59
473.44
0.00
63156.82

0.00%

{ii) Dividend on equity shares paid during the year

For the year
March 31, 2022

For the year
March 31, 2021

Dividend on equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022 of Rs. NIL

(previous year for year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 39.60) per fully paid share
Dividend distribution tax on above

Interim dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2022 of Rs. NIL
(during previous year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. Nil) per fully paid share
Dividend distribulion tax on above

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

The Beard of Direclors at it's meeling held on Apnl 30 , 2022 have recommended
payment of final dividend of Rs.20 per share of face value of Rs. 10 each for lhe
year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 44 per share).

This proposed dividend is subject lo the approval of shareholders in the ensuing
annual general meeting and hence nol recognised as liability.

198.00

22.00

100.00

220.00




38 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per seclion 135 of the Companies Acl 2013, a CSR commiltee has been formed by lhe Company. Identificalion of
deserving areas for lhe Company’s CSR activilies has been done during the year. Wilh waler being the business of the
company, The Management has identified village for carrying out CSR activilies The funds were ulilised through the
year on these activilies which were specified in Schedule VII of lhe Companies Act, 2013.

- Gross amounl required to be spent by the company during the year Rs. 26.30 lakhs. (Previous Year 22.40 Lakhs)

- Amount spent during the year is Rs. 26.30 lakhs (Previous Year 22,40 Lakhs)

Corporate Social Responsibility ex [ in Lakhs]

As at March, 2022 As at March, 2021

a) Amount required lo be spent by
|the company during the year 26.30 22.40
|b) Amount of expenditure incurred - =
(i) Construction / acquisilion of any
assel 5 =
(iiy On purpose other than (i) and
above 26.30 2240
|c) Shorlfall al the end of the year - -
|d) Total of previous years shorifall = =

|e) Reason for shorlfall - =
Educalion & Welfare of Education & Welfare of children

children

|1) Nature of CSR aclivilies

g) Details of related parly
Iransactions, e.g., contribution lo a
Irust conltrelled by the company in
relalion to CSR expenditure as per
relevanl Accounting Standard - _

h) Where a provision is made with
respecl lo a liability incurred by

enlering inlo a contractual the year
shall be shown separalely - =




39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related | sclosures as required under Accounting Slandard on "Re

of Chantered Accountants of

il Subsidiary Company
Chembond Water Technalogies Lid llalaysia (Formel

hembond Chemicals (Malaysia) SDiN.BHD), Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid

ii. Associate & Fellow Subsidiary Companies:
Chembond Material Technalogies Pyt Lid, Chembond Biosciences
Chemband Distribution Ltd. and Gramas Chemical (India) Pyl Ltd

Lid,,Chembond Polyn

& Matenals-Ltd., Chembond Calvatis Industrial Hygiene Systems Lid. Phiroze Ssthna Pyt Ltd

iv. Key Management Personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Kay Management Personnel:
Sameer V. Shah, Nirmal V. Shah, Vinod Deshpande, Mahendra K.Ghelani
Relatives

Padma V. Shah, Dr. Shilpa S. Shah, Mamia M. Shah, Alpana S. Shah, Jyoti N. Mehta, Gauri N.Mehta, Karishma N.Mehta

Enlities over which Key Management personnel are able to exercise influence

CCL Opto Electronics Pyt Ltd., Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd., S and N Ventures Ltd. GTK Intermediates Pvt. Lid. Visan Holdings Pvt. Ltd., and Onano Clean Energy Pyt Ltd,

b) The following iransactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business

For the year ended / as on 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Description of the nature of transactions Holding Subsidiary |Associate / |KMP Total Holding Subsidiary |Associate [ |KMP Total

Company Fellow Company Fellow

Subsidiary Subsidiary

Sales of Goods 69.54 623.61 2.96 65,35 761.46 48.40 449.73 3.056 32,43 533.61
Chembond Chemical Ltd 69.54 69,54 48.40 - - - 48 40
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Lid 2.80 2.80 - - 1.69 - 1.69
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 526.93 526.93 - 377.63 - - 377.63
Chembond Calvalis industrial Hygiene Systems Ltd 0.16 .18 - 0.23 - 0.23
Chembend Distribution Ltd - - = 0.35 - 0.35
Finer Piplaj Chemicals Lid. 65.35 65.35 - - 32.43 32.43
Phiroze Sethna Pvt Ltd - -
Chembond Polymers & Materials Ltd - - - 0.02 - 0.02
Chembond Biosciences Ltd - = = 0.76 - 0.76
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd Malaysia
(Formerly know as Chembend Chemicals
(Malaysia) SDN.BHD) 96.68 96.68 - 72.10 - 72.10
Purchase of Goods 220.96 587.28 135.01 1,670.84 2,614.09 176.26 301.44 113.78 1,084.83 1,676.31
Chembond Chemical Ltd 220.96 220.96 176.26 = - - 176.26
Chembond Clean Waler Technologies Ltd 587.28 587.28 - 301.44 - 2 301.44
Chembond Biosciences Ltd 0.30 0.30 -
Chembend Distribulien Lid 41.00 41.00 - - 65.08 £ 65.06
Finor Piplaj Chemi Lld. 1570.84 1,570.84 = - - 1,084.83 1,084.83
Chembend Material Technolegies Pvt Ltd 9213 92.13 48.70 48.70
Chembond Calvalis Industral Hygiene Systems Lid 1.58 1.58 - - - - -
GRAMOS CHEMICALS INDIA PVT LTD = = - 0.02 = 0.02
Reimbursement of Exp 248.71 = - = 248,71 257.67 10.61 - 2.97 271.25
Chembond Chemical Lid 24871 248.71 257.67 - - - 257.67
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid - - 10.61 - - 10.81
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd. - - = - 2.97 2:97
Rent Income - 1.20 2.40 - 3.60 - - - - -
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 1.20 1.20 -
Chemband Material Technologies Pvi Lid 1.20 1.20
Chembond Calvalis Industrial Hygiene Ltd 1.20 1.20 -
Jobwork charges 839.96 - - - 839.96 792.27 - - - 792.27
Chembond Chemical Lid 839.96 839.86 79227 - - - 792.27
Loan Repayment - - - - - - 305,00 - 95.00 400.00
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd = - 305.00 - - 305.00
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd. - pd = = - - - 95.00 95.00
Corporate Gurantee Fees 19.00 - - - 19.00 19.00 - - - 19.00
Chembond Chemical Ltd 19.00 19.00 19.00 - - = 19.00
Rental Expenses 63.54 = - 3.00 66.54 50.94 - - 3.00 53.94
Chembond Chemical Ltd 63.54 63.54 50.94 50.94
Finar Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Director Remunration = & - 140.00 140.00 - - - 138.32 138.32
Sameer V Shah - + = =
Nirmal V. Shah = - = 56.28/ 56.28 - - = 48.95 48.85
Vinod J. Deshpande - - = 83.72 83.72 = 89.37 89.37
Director Sitting Fees - - - 0.90 0.90 - - - 0.64 0.64
Mahendra Ghelani - - = 0.80 0.90 - - - 0.64 0.64
Investments ~ 91.60 - - - 91.60 - - - - -
Chembond Water Technologies (THAILAND) Co.Lt 9160 91.60 - - - - -
Balance at the end of the year
A. Sundry Debtors 19.01 67.99 1.24 3.03 91.27 11.29 202.49 0.64 10.14 224.56
Chembond Chemical Lid 19.01 19.01 11.29 - - - 11.29
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid 67.99 67.99 - 202.49 - - 202.49
Chembond Calvatis Industrial Hygiene Systems Ltd 0.1 0.11 - - - -
Chembond Material Technologies Pyt Ltd 1.13 1.13 - - 063 - 0.63
Chembond Biosciences Lid = - - 0.01 - 0.01
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 3.03 3.03 = - - 10.14 10.14
B. Sundry Creditors 74.65 9211 12,15 28.69 207.60 108.35 172.14 10.48 282.55 573.52
Chembond ial Technologies Pt Ltd - = - 5.08 - 508
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 28.69 28.69 - - = 282.55 282.55
Chembond Distribution Ltd 12.15 12.15 - = 540 - 540
Chembend Clean Water Technologies Lid 92.11 92.11 - 172.14 - - 172.14
Chembond Chemical Ltd 74.85 7485 108.35 - - - 108.35
C.In ts 1,273.87 - - - 1,273.87 - 1,182.27 - - 1,182.27
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 1,119.59 1.119.59 1.119.59 1.119.59
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd Malaysia
(Formerly know as Chembond Chemicals
(Malaysia) SDON.BHD) 6268 62.68 62.68 - - 62.68
Chembond Water Technologies (THAILAMD)
Co.Ltd 91.60 91.80 > - - - -




40 Trade receivables ageing schedule on 31 March 2022

[Rs in Lakhs]
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months - More than
Particulars Not due 6 months 1 Year 1-2Year 2-3Year 3 Years Total
Trade receivables 3370.61 610.51 325.62 181.19 4487.93
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
Undisputed trade receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - considered good = - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant - - - - =
increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired . - - - = -
3,370.61 | 61051 ] 325.62 | g 181.19 4,487.93
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (181.19)
4,306.74
Trade receivables 0.00
4,306.74

Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

[Rs in Lakhs]

Particulars
Trade receivables -Billed

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Undisputed trade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables - considered good
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant

increase in credit risk

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Trade receivables

4

—

Particular

Trade Payables

MSME

Others

Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others

Trade Payables ageing schedule on 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months - More than |
Not due 6 months 1 Year 1-2Year 2-3Year 3 Years Total

3254.27 639.76 3116 # 187.13 4392,761

325427 | 63976 31160 | ; 187.13 z 4,392.76
(174.78)

4,217.98

0.00

4,217.98

[Rs in Lakhs]

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 1-2Year 2-3Year Morethan3 Total
1Year Year
294.96 294.96
1019.47 31,53 1051
- = = - - 0
5 - - - 0

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Particular

Trade Payables

MSME

Others

Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others

[Rs in Lakhs]

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Lessthan 1-2Year 2-3Year Morethan3 Total
1 Year Year
129.2 129.2
1703.58 130.82 131.05 537 1970.82
= s - : < 0
= - - - - 0




42 Ratios

Ratio Numerator |Denominator [Current  |Previous |% variance Reason for
| Year vear variance
Current ratio (in tmes Total current| Total current 3.39 2.55 32.70%|Trade
assets liabilities payable is
lesser than
preceding
year as dues
of creditors
reduced
comparing
to preceding
I Vear
Debt-Equity ratio {in times) Debt Total equity 0.28 0.44 -35.76%|As dues of
cansists of creditors
total reduced
liabilities comparing
to preceding
year resulted
decreased in
debt
liabilities
Debt service coverage ratio (in Earning for | Debt service 278.11 75.84 266.73%|Interest paid
times) Debt = Interest during the
service = Net |and lease year has
Profit payments been
after taxes + |+ Principal decreased
Noncash repayments comparing
operating to last year
expenses + resulted
interest + increased in
e Other DSCR
Return On equity ratio (in %) Profit for the|Average total 12.61%| 20.20% -37.57%|% of profit
year equity has been
decreased
comparint to
last year !/
resulted
decreased in
ROER
Inventory turnover ratio (in times) |Raw Average 10.57 10.70 -1.20%
materials, inventories
subassembli
es,
components
finished
eoods and
Trade receivable Lurnover ratio {in |Revenue Average trade 3.91 3.48 12.38%
times) from receivables
operations
Trade payables turnover ratio (in |Total Average trade 5.50 4.04 36.25%|Trade
Limes) supplier payables payable is
puichases lesser than
preceding
year as dues
of creditors
reduced
comparing
to preceding
vear
Net capital turnover ratio {in Revenue Average 3.83/ 375 2.17%
times) from waorking
operations  |capital (le.
Tolal current
assets less
Tolal current
liabilities
Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the |Revenue from 5.01% B.A2% -40,50%| % of profit
year operations has been
decreased
comparint o
last year
resulted
decreased in
= NPR
Return on capital employed (in %) |Profit before [Capital 16.90%| 23.98% -29.53%|% of profit
tax employed = has been
and finance |Net worth decreased
cost + Lease comparint to
liabilities + last year
Deferred tax resulted
liabilities decreased in
ROCE
Return on investments {in %) Income Average 4.57% 0.19% 2324.99%|Income
generated  [invested funds| generated
from in treasury from
invested investments invested
funds funds has
increased
as Lhese are
generated
fram
redemption
of
investment




43 Disclosures related to funds borrowed from banks and financial institutions

Borrowings from banks on the basis of security of book debls & Stocks.

Monthly statements of book debts, sundry creditors and stack filed by the Company with banks are
in agreement with the books of accounts

[Rs in La_khsl

Particular of Amountas Amount Amount of Reason for
Securities per books as Difference Material
Mame of  Provided of account reported Discrepancie
Quarter
Bank in the s
quarterly
return/st
Book Debts 4537.8 4571.38 -33.58 Book debts
submitted to
Bank of nang
Jun-21 z excluding
India
inter
company
outstanding.

Sundry 426.67 42667 -

Creditors

Stock 77351 773.51 -

Book Debts 4689.01 469558 -6.57 Book debts
submitted to

Bank of bk
Sep-21 i -ex(luding
inter
company
outstanding,

Sundry 41679 416.79 -

Creditors

Stock 778.47 17847 =

Book Debts 4520.82 451279 B.03 Book debts
submilted to

Bank of bank "
Dec-21 ) excluding
India
inter
company
outstanding.

Sundry 30036 300.36 -

Creditors

Stock 1208.57 1208.57 -

Book Debts 433164 433077 0.87 Book debts
submitted to
bank

Mar-22 B;:;:f excluding
inter
company
outstanding.

Sundry 666.22  666.22 -

Creditors

P Stock 1018.83  1018.83 -

a4 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information

A

=

o

o

m

o

The Company and its Indian subsidiaries do not have any Benami property and no proceedings have been initiated
or pending against the Company and its Indian subsidiaries for holding any Benami property, under the Benami

Transactions (Proh

tions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

The Company and its Indian subsidiaries do not have any transactions with struck off companies under section
248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956, except for the parties mentioned

below:
Nature of Balance | Relationsh| Balance | Relationship
transactions | outstanding | ipwith |outstandi with
Namrofthe struck aff Compant with struck as at 31 the struck ng the struck off
aff O March 2027 aff acat 1 r
LANXESS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED |Chemical Suf] -15840 N/A -15840 N/A

The Company does not have any charge which is yet to be registered / satisfied with ROC beyond the statutory period

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or othenwise) that the Group shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party(Ultimale Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has not undertaken any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cuirency or Virtual Currency during the current or previous year.

The Company has not been declared as a ‘Willul Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under
the Campanies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by

the Reserve Bank of India.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

"The Company is engaged in the manufacture of Specialty
Chemicals, which in the context of IND AS 108- Operating
segment specifed under section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 is considered as a single
business seament of the companv.

Contingent Liabilites not provided for are in respect of :

Particulars

a.Sales Tax matter under Appeal

a.ncome Tax matter

(i) The demand raised by Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax,
Mumbai for the AY 2009-10 amounting to Rs. 4.63 Lakhs
(Including Interest) (Previous Year Rs. 3.05 Lakhs)

(i) The demand raised by Assistant Commisioner of Income Tax,
Centralised Processing Cell - TDS for various years amounting to
Rs. 0 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1.39 Lakhs)

b. Outstanding L.C & Bank Guarantees issued by Bankers.
c.Corporate Guarantee given to Bank of India by the Company on behalf
of Subsidiaries Chembond Solenis Water Technologies Ltd. & Chembond
Clean Water Technologies Ltd.
d.Income Tax matter under appeal
e.Balance Payment for Capital Commitments

d.Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts

e.Excise matter under Appeal
(Rs.24.22 Lakhs already paid as predeposit for appeal)

c. Sales Tax matter

(i) As per Vat audit report of Maharashtra Plant sales tax liability
for AY 2017-18 amounting to Rs. 0 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.
6.29 Lakhs)

D. GST matter
(i) The demand raised by GST Depariment for the AY 2022-23
amounting to Rs. 0.46 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 0)

As at 31/03/2022

As at 31/03/2021

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
4.63 4.44
1,525.02 1,651.16
- 6.29
0.48 -




48 Previous year figures have heen regrouped, reallocated and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm lo current years classifcation and presentation.
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